
Building and Grounds Committee
April 6, 2021 4:30 PM
Central Services Board Room

1. Call to Order - Mr. Robert Safdie
2. Moment of Silence and Pledge - Mr. Robert Safdie
3. Approval of Committee Minutes
4. CCHS Soccer Score Board
5. Stone Elementary Storage Building
6. SMHS Football Facility Renovation
7. Other Discussion
8. Adjournment



 

Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

January 21, 2021 4:30 PM 
Central Services Board Room 

The Building and Grounds Committee met on Tuesday, February 11, 2019, in the Central Services Board Room 
where Mr. Safdie called the meeting to order at the approximate hour of 4:34 p.m. He welcomed everyone to the 
meeting.  
 
PRESENT:          
Robert Safdie, District 2     Jim Inman, District 1     
Shirley Parris, District 3     Anita Hale, District 4 
Teresa Boston, District 8     Mary Kington, Maintenance Supervisor 
Ina Maxwell, Director of School    Christie VanWinkle, Martin Elementary Principal  
Earl Patton, Attorney      Kacee Harris, CFO 
 
 

1. Call	to	Order	–	Mr.	Robert	Safdie	
2. Moment	of	Silence	/	Pledge	of	Allegiance	–	Mr.	Robert	Safdie	
3. November	10,	2020	Building	and	Grounds	Committee	Meeting	Minutes		

 
VOICE VOTE: Inman (mover-yes) 

    Safdie (seconder-yes) 
   All Ayes 
 
MOTION:  Carried unanimously  
 

 
4. Martin	Elementary	Crosswalk	

Safdie	introduced	the	topic	and	said,	“Let	me	preface	that	with,	after	we	discuss	the	Martin	
Elementary	Crosswalk,	we’re	going	to	have	a	discussion,	sort	of	a	catch-up	discussion	on	what	we	
left	unanswered	from	the	last	building	and	grounds	committee	meeting.”	Safdie	asked	Mary	
Kington	to	tell	everybody	what	is	going	on	with	the	crosswalk.		Kington	said,	“Mr.	Begley	sent	me	
an	email	advising	us	that	the	city	would	like	install	a	crosswalk	from	the	CCHS	ballpark	across	
Miller	Avenue	Bypass	to	Martin	Elementary.	As	of	right	now	they	do	not	have	the	permits,	to	my	
knowledge,	that	they	need	from	the	state.	And	they	are	still	gathering	quotes	on	the	total	cost	of	
this.”		Safdie	asked,	“Does	anyone	have	any	questions?		(none)	Let	me	make	this	motion.	I	would	
like	to	give	the	Director	of	Schools	authority	to	continue	a	dialog	with	the	city	to	examine	the	cost	
of	the	crosswalk	and	estimated	maintenance	cost	would	be	if	we	move	into	this	agreement	with	
the	city.	That	motion	is	to	give	the	Director	of	Schools	to	continue	to	explore	the	crosswalk	and	
then	return	to	us	the	building	and	grounds	committee	to	let	us	know	what	is	happening	with	that	
motion.	
	

VOICE VOTE:   Safdie  (mover-yes) 
   Inman (seconder-yes) 
   All Ayes 
 
MOTION:  Carried unanimously  

 



	
	

5. Other Discussion 
Safdie said, “We left some issues open last meeting, they include; replacing the porcelain at Martin, the 
contingency fund, how painting of the doors was handled, the progress on the shed and the progress on 
the school ramp project.” Safdie asked Inman if he had any other issues to discuss?  Inman responded, 
“No.” Safdie continued, “Let’s look at Martin then, Christie can you tell us what is happening at Martin 
and if you are satisfied with the job or not?” VanWinkle responded, “I think it’s great right now. We do 
need some exterior paint on the doors and the awnings that are just needing a new coat of paint. Also, 
where the hardware was changed on the interior doors, we need some paint on those.  We have started 
painting we just haven’t made it around to all of them.” Safdie asked, “So, you feel that the existing 
progress of the renovations that have taken place are completed?” VanWinkle responded, “Yes!” Safdie 
continued, “You still have some painting to do but maintenance is handling that, is that correct?”  
VanWinkle responded, “Yes.” Safdie asked, “Mary is that correct?” Kington responded, “We furnish the 
paint for that project, but I think Christie’s custodial staff is handling that.”  
Safdie said, So, the next question is the contingency fund? Kacee, what is left of that contingency fund?” 
Harris responded, “I don’t have that number in front of me. It has not changed since we looked at it, 
Christie may remember, I would say $2,000.00 or less. Does that sound about right?”  VanWinkle 
responded, “I believe Kim Chamberlin said there was no money left in the contingency plan.” Harris 
said, “I have not reviewed that since our last meeting.” Safdie apologized.  Harris responded, “That is 
quite alright. I will follow up with that and if there is any, I will work with Mrs. VanWinkle to make 
sure that it is applied to the little theatre expenses. I know they are working on that sound system.” 
Inman said, “Mrs. Franklin said that the minutes say that there is $300.00 left in it. So, I would venture 
to say there is not anything left in it by now.”  Safdie said, “I didn’t get a chance to recognize our board 
members who are attending, Mrs.  Hale, thank you for being here. Any question you have, this 
committee welcomes you and any comment you might have. Safdie continued, “The shed progress, who 
can tell me about the shed progress that has taken place? I think CTE was supposed to build a shed and 
the price of course was being paid for by CTE.” Mary asked, “Is that the one at SMHS?” Safdie said, 
“Yes, the one at Stone Memorial.” Kington stated, “That is in continuous progress, weather, and COVID 
had delayed that progress.” Safdie continued, “There doesn’t seem to be any problems other than the 
standard ones over the last 6 months?” Safdie continued, “Does anyone have any questions for Mary 
about that project? The last question I have, and I will turn it over to any board members. School ramp 
project. Mr. Inman, we have a project that has went on for about 2 years now. It has to do with Phoenix 
school and existing ramps to go to a playground.  Do we know anything about that Mary?” Kington 
responded, Yes, sir. It’s complete at this time.  WE did have a COVID delay in that, but the Tennessee 
Tech students came and completed that project.  It is up and running, it looks wonderful and everybody 
is really excited about it.” Safdie said, “I believe there was a bid that went out today I think for concrete 
foundation. Kacee, can you tell us a little about that?” Harris responded, “Late this afternoon, we did get 
our bids back on the concrete for the Transition Academy. The low bid came in at $24,488.00 which 
was right around the number we were hoping to see.  That was good and as weather permits and it is 
warm enough and dry enough, we are hoping to move forward with that concrete work.  We are making 
progress.”  Safdie asked Inman Are you satisfied with this.  Inman responded, “I’m happy with it 
because we were told at one time that they felt like the concrete was going to come in almost close to 
$100,000.00, because it had to be done with a commercial setting instead of a housing setting. They 
were just concerned that it was going to cost a lot more than what it did come in at. At. $25,000.00 
we’re good, I think we will have enough in the budget to finish that product.”  Safdie asked, “Does the 
building and grounds committee have to do anything else to approve that project.  We have already 
approved it, right?” Inman responded, “yes it has it has already been approved by the full board more 
than once. I don’t think we have to do anything else other than keep an eye on the progress.” Safdie 
asked Maxwell if she had anything to bring up with building projects?” Maxwell responded, “Not at this 
time Mr. Safdie, I think this has been a thorough overview of where we’re at and I thank you for 
considering me.” Safdie asked Patton if he had anything to say? Patton said, “Kacee and I discussed the 



Martin project leading up to this meeting. There were some questions about some ADA issues and that 
kind of thing that the Board may have to deal with down the line.  It’s hard to look a gift horse in the 
mouth. When you’ve got a project like this, obviously that’s going to cost money and that’s money that 
is not coming out of the Board’s pocket. It appears to be something worth pursuing.” Safdie said, “I 
think the question is will the city have money available, and when will it be available and then what are 
the estimated cost to our maintenance for that.” VanWinkle said, “We have been looking at this for 
several years. We have high school athletes that run across four lanes of traffic during the day. We have 
parents and volunteers parking at the ball field and walking across. People have to be very careful and 
conscientious about traffic coming and the speed of traffic coming. That is where all of this stemmed 
from and it was several years in the making.”  

 
 

 
 
 

6. Adjournment	
	
	
VOICE VOTE:   Parris (mover-yes) 
   Inman (seconder-yes) 
   All Ayes	
 
MOTION:  Carried unanimously 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Dr. Ina Maxwell 
Director of Schools 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Mr. Robert Safdie 
Chairman of Building and Grounds Committee 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Jane Franklin 
Executive Assistant for the Director of Schools and BOE 
 

 


































	Agenda
	1. Call to Order - Mr. Robert Safdie
	2. Moment of Silence and Pledge - Mr. Robert Safdie
	3. Approval of Committee Minutes
	Building and Grounds Committee Meeting Minutes 01.21.21

	4. CCHS Soccer Score Board
	CCHS scoreboard for Soccer 3-2021 approved for B&G

	5. Stone Elementary Storage Building
	Stone Elem storage building 3-2021 approved for B&G

	6. SMHS Football Facility Renovation
	SMHS Football Renovation #1 for B&G

	7. Other Discussion
	8. Adjournment

